
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, February 1, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

Anderson County Civic Center 
3027 Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard 

 Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 

 
1.   CALL TO ORDER        
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATION: 
 
    a. R2022-002- A Resolution to congratulate the Wren High School Competitive Cheer team on winning the 2021 

South Carolina State Class AAA competitive cheer state championship, its first state title in 23 years; and other 
matters related thereto. 

Hon. Jimmy Davis 
 
    
 
 
3. ADJOURNMENT   

 
 
 

 AGENDA  
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, February 1, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Anderson County Civic Center 
3027 Martin Luther King, Jr. Boulevard 

 Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER     
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                        Hon. Jimmy Davis  
 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES    

  December 21, 2021 
  minutes not received January 4, 2022, January 18, 2022 

     
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Agenda Matters Only 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 1, 2022 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

5. REPORT FROM PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 31, 2022 
    a. EMS Update 
    b. Code Chapter 30 EMS amendments and franchise discussion 

Mr. Ray Graham (allotted 10 minutes) 
 

 
6. ORDINANCE THIRD READING:  
   a. 2021-074- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of 
Equinox Mill LLC; and other matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME 
LIMIT) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

   b. 2021-075-An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 
park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related 
thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
   c. 2021-076- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of 
Old Dominion Freight Line, Inc.; and other matters related thereto. [Project Greenlight] (PUBLIC HEARING 
THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

   d. 2022-001- An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and between 
Anderson County, South Carolina and a company known to the County at this time as Project Faith with respect 
to certain economic development property in the County, whereby such property will be subject to certain 
payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain special source credits; and other matters related 
thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

   e. 2022-002- An Ordinance to provide for redistricting of the seven County Council districts of Anderson County, 
as to population, prior to the next general election cycle following the adoption by the State of South Carolina 
of the 2020 Decennial Census, pursuant to section 4-9-90, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended; 
and other matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
7. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  

 
a. 2022-003 An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 

(2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related thereto. [Project 
Spruce] (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT)  

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

 
b. 2022-004-An Ordinance to amend section 38-311(c) of the Anderson County, South Carolina Code of Ordinances 

to add an additional subsection to establish a time frame for consideration of previously disapproved projects by the 
Planning Commission; and other matters related thereto.  

Mr. Tommy Dunn (allotted 5 minutes) 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 1, 2022 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

 
 
 

8. FIRST READING:  
 
a. 2022-005- An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business park 

(2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of Lollis 
Metals, Inc.; and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
b. 2022-006- An Ordinance to amend sections 38-172 and 38-174 of the Anderson County, South Carolina, Code of 
Ordinances so as to require Planning Commission approval for certain dwelling units; and other matters related 
thereto. 

Ms. Alesia Hunter (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 
 
9. RESOLUTIONS:  
 
a.  R2022-005- A Resolution to approve an authorization agreement between Renewable Water Resources and 
Anderson County to provide for sewer service to certain areas south of South Carolina Highway 8 in the vicinity of 
its intersection with I-85; and other matters related thereto.  

     Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 
 

10. BID APPROVAL: 
 
a.  Bid #22-019 Great Lawn Park Project 
b.  Bid #22-032 The 1428 BLDG. Re-Roof 
c.  Bid #22-033 Bradley Road Interceptor 
d.  Bid #22-034 Five Mile Phase  
e.  Bid #22-035 ASEC Paver Replacement 
f.  Bid #22-036 ASEC Landscaping 
 

 
 

 
 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
a. Legal advice subject to attorney client privilege regarding acquisition of sewer easements. 
b. Action following Executive Session 
 
  
12. REQUESTS BY COUNCIL    
a. Palmetto Knights-Historical Medieval Battle-all districts 
             
 
13. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT       
       
 
 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, February 1, 2022 
 
Page 4 

 

   
 

14. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
16. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 

modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 
or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 

possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 
contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



                                                   RESOLUTION R2022-002 
 
A RESOLUTION TO CONGRATULATE THE WREN HIGH SCHOOL 
COMPETITIVE CHEER TEAM ON WINNING THE 2021 SOUTH CAROLINA 
STATE CLASS AAA COMPETITIVE CHEER STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS, ITS 
FIRST STATE TITLE IN 23 YEARS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED 
THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, through hard work, dedication, teamwork, and precise attention to detail, 
under the leadership of Head Coach Kristee Brady, Assistant Coach Reid Merritt, and JV 
Coach Korey Stone, the 2021 Wren High School Competitive Cheer Team won two 
invitationals, regions, upper state, and the state competitions; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on Saturday, November 20, 2021, the Wren cheerleaders traveled to the 
Colonial Life Arena in Columbia, South Carolina to compete in the South Carolina State 
Cheer Championships and, demonstrating detailed routines that displayed the team’s 
cohesiveness, outperformed the competition with a winning score of 471, earning 
recognition as the 2021 South Carolina State Class AAA Competitive Cheer Champions; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council wishes to commend the Wren High School 
Competitive Cheer Team for being outstanding ambassadors for our community, setting 
an example for their peers to emulate. We are extremely proud of the team winning the 
2021 South Carolina State Class AAA Competitive Cheerleading Championship, and we 
wish each of you great success in all your future endeavors. 
 
RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 1st day of February 2022. 

 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY  ATTEST 
 
 
____________________   ____________________ 
Jimmy Davis     Rusty Burns 
County Council    County Administrator  
District Six 
      ____________________ 
      Renee Watts 

Clerk to Council 
                                               



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

 COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

DECEMBER 21, 2021

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
JOHN WRIGHT
GLENN DAVIS
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JIMMY DAVIS
CINDY WILSON

ALSO PRESENT:
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   ... here at
2 Christmas to come be us and help do the people’s
3 business of Anderson County.  We’re going to start off
4 first of all, if we could all rise.  Keep in mind -- the
5 Honorable Jimmy Davis will lead us in the pledge of
6 allegiance and prayer, please.
7 JIMMY DAVIS:   May we pray?
8 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS
9 TOMMY DUNN:    At this time we’re
10 going to move on to item number 3, resolutions.  
11  Resolution R2021-064.  This is from all council
12 members, but our Vice Chairman Sanders will be
13 introducing this.  Mr. Sanders.
14 BRETT SANDERS:   Thank you, Mr.
15 Chairman.  Resolution R2021-064, a resolution to honor
16 and recognize Terry Gaines upon his retirement from the
17 Anderson Sports and Entertainment Complex, and other
18 matters related thereto.
19 WHEREAS, Terry Gaines began his service twenty-two
20 years ago at the Anderson Sports & Entertainment Complex
21 (ASEC) in 1999, maintaining the ballfields at the 
22 Sports Complex until March 2012 and, since then, serving
23 as Civic Center Event and Leasing Coordinator; and 
24 WHEREAS, Mr. Gaines graduated from D.W. Daniel High
25 School in 1976, graduated with a Bachelor of Science
26 from Central Wesleyan College in 1981, attends New 
27 Prospect Baptist Church with his wife of 28 years,
28 Jamie, and has one son, Zach, and a daughter-in-law,
29 Nikki; and 
30 WHEREAS, Anderson County wishes to recognize Mr.
31 Gaines upon his retirement for his many years of service
32 to the County and to express appreciation for his
33 dedicated, committed service to the citizens of Anderson
34 County; 
35 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, to take effect and be in
36 force immediately upon enactment, that Anderson County
37 Council thanks Mr. Gaines for his dedicated service 
38 over the years and wishes him a healthy and fulfilling
39 retirement.  Adopted in a meeting duly assembled this
40 twenty-first day of December, 2021. 
41 I’d like to put that in the form of a motion, sir.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion.  I
43 think all council members will second that.  I open the
44 floor up now for discussion.  Anyone have any comments
45 or words?
46 I just want to say, Mr. Gaines, we appreciate what
47 all you’ve done for the citizens of Anderson County. 
48 Thank you very, very much.  You’ve earned this.  Hate to
49 see you leave, but hope you enjoy your retirement, you
50 and your wife and kids.  You’ve earned it.  And don’t be



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
3

1 a stranger.  Any way we can always help you let us know. 
2 We really do appreciate what all you’ve done for the
3 citizens of Anderson County.  And I know since you’ve
4 been at the Civic Center you’ve made it a better place. 
5 Thank you.  
6 Anyone else?  All in favor of the vote show of
7 hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
8 unanimously.  
9 Mr. Gaines, if you and your wife and family, step
10 up.
11 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
12 APPLAUSE 
13 TOMMY DUNN:   We’ll move on now to
14 item number 5, citizens comments.  Comments on the first
15 go around are on agenda items only for the -- that’s on
16 the agenda for today.  You’ve got three minutes.  State
17 your name and district you’re from.  Please address the
18 chair.  Mr. Harmon.
19 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
20 is signed up to speak.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to move
22 on now to item number 6(a), third reading.  This will be 
23 2021-072, an Ordinance authorizing the execution of an
24 infrastructure credit agreement among Anderson County,
25 Fair Street Partners LLC, and the City of Anderson,
26 South Carolina; and other related matters.  
27 Before we go into a public hearing, I’d ask Mr.
28 Nelson if he has anything he wants to say since he
29 missed the last meeting and I had to fill in for you. 
30 I’m getting tired of that.  Ain’t going to do that no
31 more.  Do your job.  I can’t do it as good as you do. 
32 Go ahead.
33 BURRISS NELSON:  And Rusty has given
34 you kudos for the great job you did.  And I appreciate
35 it, too.  Thank you very much.
36 This is Project Chemtex and it’s a multi-use housing
37 and commercial project, expected to be about twenty-one
38 million dollars in capital investment.  It’s a joint
39 project with the city of Anderson and Anderson County in
40 this development project.  The investment should create
41 somewhere between thirty-five and fifty commercial
42 retail jobs; a hundred and twenty-six residential lease
43 units; and provide greatly needed housing in Anderson
44 County.  
45 First year property taxes of approximately thirteen
46 thousand, and in fifteen years a total of about two
47 hundred and fourteen thousand for all taxing entities.
48 This comes to Council with a recommendation from
49 staff, as well as the Economic Development Advisory
50 Board.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
4

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time we’ll
2 go into a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to
3 this, please step forward, state your name and district
4 for the record, and address the chair, please.  Anyone
5 at all?  Anyone?  Seeing and hearing none, the public
6 hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to put this
7 on the floor?
8 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Wright. 
10 Do we have a second?
11 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Graham. 
13 Any discussion?  I just want to say, I want to commend 
14 -- I think this is going to be great for not only
15 downtown, but it’s going to be good for the county and
16 the city both.  I want to commend and thank Councilman
17 Wright for working on this and getting some details
18 hammered out.  Mr. Burns, appreciate you and your staff,
19 what all y’all do, and the city.  I think it’s going to
20 be good.  It’s going to help out everybody.  It’s even
21 going to touch up Mr. Glenn Davis’s district, too, and
22 we’re all happy about this.  And glad to see the city’s
23 growth is expanding outside Main Street.
24 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
25 Chairman.  Mr. Chairman, also, Mary Haley Thompson is
26 here representing the city.  She’s worked on the project
27 for the city and negotiated a lot of that.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate you, too. 
29 Thank you very much.  Anyone else have anything? 
30 Hearing and seeing none, all in favor of the motion show
31 of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
32 unanimously.
33 We’re going to move on now to item number 6(b). 
34 This also will be a public hearing.  This will be 
35 2021-073, an Ordinance to develop a joint
36 industrial/business park in conjunction with Oconee
37 County, such industrial/business park to be
38 geographically located in Anderson County and
39 established pursuant to Sec. 4-1-170 of the Code of Laws
40 of South Carolina, 1976, as amended; to provide for a
41 written agreement with Oconee County to provide for the
42 expenses of the park, the percentage of revenue
43 application, and the distribution of fees in lieu of ad
44 valorem taxation; and other matters related thereto.
45 Again, Mr. Nelson, would you like to say a few words
46 on this before we go into a public hearing?
47 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr.
48 Chairman, members of Council.  This is adding this
49 project to the Oconee County/Anderson County Multi-
50 County Park Agreement.  But it opens up opportunities



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
5

1 for additional incentives for the project, and works
2 just like it does with many of our projects with
3 Greenville.  Of course, this comes to Council with a
4 recommendation from staff and the Economic Development
5 Advisory Board.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time we’ll
7 go into a public hearing.  If you wish to speak to this,
8 please state your name and district for the record and
9 address the chair, please.  Public hearing.  Anyone at
10 all?  Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will
11 be closed.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
12 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Graham. 
14 Do we have a second?
15 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
17 Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor
18 of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
19 Show the motion carries unanimously.  
20 Let me back up, just a couple of things, and I
21 apologize.  Item number 4, there was no minutes to -- we
22 haven’t got them for the December 7th meeting.  I just
23 skipped over that, but there wasn’t nothing to approve
24 or disapprove because there’s not nothing there.  
25 And let the record show our administrator is not
26 here today, will not be here.  Let’s keep him and his
27 family in our thoughts and prayers.  He had a death. 
28 He’s at a funeral today of someone very close and dear
29 to him and his family.  Let’s keep him in our thoughts
30 and prayers.  I think this is probably going to be the
31 first meeting I ever remember in my and his over ten
32 years that he’s missing.  I think we need to dock his
33 pay.  What do y’all think?
34 Moving on to item number 7(a), there are no second
35 readings.
36 We’re going to move on to item 8(a), first reading.
37 This is an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
38 development of a joint county industrial and business 
39 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so
40 as to enlarge the park to include certain property of 
41 Equinox Mill LLC and other matters related thereto.
42 Mr. Nelson.
43 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
44 Chairman, members of Council.  Of course, this is the
45 Equinox Housing Project with the M. Peters Group.  And
46 this is a project that is probably one of the most
47 advantageous to the county since that Equinox Plant will
48 be cleaned up in this project.  All that debris, all
49 that stuff will be gone.  And it’s all part of the
50 project and the developer is moving that at his expense. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
6

1 This project needs also to be included in a multi-
2 county industrial park so that they can access the
3 incentives that -- statutory incentives that could be
4 available to them.  
5 This comes to Council as a recommendation from
6 staff, as well as from the Economic Development Advisory
7 Board.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
9 to put this on the floor?
10 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
12 Do we have a second?
13 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Graham. 
15 Any discussion?  I just want to say again, we appreciate
16 everybody working on this.  I think this is going to be
17 great for Anderson County and the city, too.  You know,
18 Jackson Street, which this is located off of, is a main
19 thoroughfare.  People don’t understand, a lot of traffic
20 goes into town that way.  Clean this eyesore up.  It’s
21 going to be good for that.  It’s going to be good for
22 the neighborhood around there.  And I think it’ll start
23 doing wonders for that, clean that up.  Look forward to
24 this.  After talking about this for a couple of years
25 now, glad to see it moving forward.  And I think we
26 finally got somebody here that’ll get the job done. 
27 Anymore discussion?  All in favor of the motion show of
28 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
29 unanimously.  
30 We’re going to move on now to 8(b), 2021-075, an
31 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a
32 joint county industrial and business park (2010 Park) of
33 Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the
34 park and other matters related thereto.
35 Mr. Nelson, do you have anything you want to say to
36 this?
37 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir.  Thank
38 you, Mr. Chairman.  This is a multi-site project in
39 Greenville that’s being added to the Multi-County
40 Industrial Park.  Of course, this is still unannounced. 
41 And is a courtesy to Greenville County in pursuit of
42 economic development incentives, statutory incentives,
43 that could be available to the projects.
44 This is a reciprocal agreement.  We add projects to
45 the Multi-County Park with them and they add with us. 
46 So Greenville County Council sends their thanks for your
47 consideration.  Thank you, sir.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
49 Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
50 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
7

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
2 Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Now any discussion? 
3 Hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
4 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
5 unanimously.  
6 We’re going to move on to 8(c), 2021-076, an
7 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a
8 joint county industrial and business park (2010 Park) of
9 Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the
10 park to include certain property of Old Dominion Freight
11 Line, Inc. and other matters related thereto.
12 Mr. Nelson.
13 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
14 Chairman, members of Council.  This is adding the Old
15 Dominion Trucking Freight Line Depot that’s on Hurricane
16 Creek Road between Exit 19 and 21.  Creating twenty-
17 seven jobs.  We passed this ordinance, or Council passed
18 this ordinance back in the summer.  Creating twenty-
19 seven jobs with an average pay of twenty-eight dollars
20 and forty-six cents an hour.  Annual payroll 1.5 million
21 dollars, with a capital investment of 8.6 million.  
22 This comes to County Council as a recommendation
23 from the staff, as well as the Economic Development
24 Advisory Board.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do we
26 have a motion to move this forward?
27 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
29 second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing
30 none, all in favor of the motion show of hands.  Show
31 the motion carries unanimously.  Like sign opposed.  
32 We’re going to move on now to item number 8(d),
33 first reading, 2021-077, an Ordinance authorizing and
34 approving (1) The development of a joint county
35 industrial and business park pursuant to section 4-1-170
36 of the code of South Carolina 1976, as amended, in
37 conjunction with Greenville County (The “Park”), such
38 park to be geographically located in Greenville County;
39 (2) the execution and delivery of a written park
40 agreement with Greenville County as to the requirement
41 of payments of fee in lieu of ad valorem taxes with
42 respect to park property and the sharing of the revenues
43 and expenses of the park; (3) the distribution of
44 revenues from the park with Anderson County; and (4)
45 other matters related thereto.  Mr. Nelson.
46 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
47 Chairman, members of Council.  This is a Greenville
48 County Project, Project Ott, still unannounced.  And
49 this comes to Council with a request and as a courtesy
50 from Greenville County Council in their pursuit of



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
8

1 economic development and allows this project to access
2 statutory incentives that could be available to them. 
3 And of course, Greenville County sends its thanks for
4 assisting with this project and looks forward to
5 assisting us with our next one.  
6 This comes to Council with a recommendation from
7 staff, as well as the Economic Development Advisory
8 Board.  
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
10 Nelson.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
11 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
13 Davis; and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
14 Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the motion show
15 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
16 carries unanimously.  
17 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you for your
18 support.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you for what
20 all y’all have done.  We’ve had a great year, Mr.
21 Nelson, you and your team, brought to Anderson County. 
22 We really do appreciate it.  Thank y’all very, very much
23 for all y’all’s work and all y’all do.  Make sure your
24 staff knows we appreciate them, and the Economic
25 Development Board that we nominate, too.  Outstanding
26 job.
27 BURRISS NELSON:  (Inaudible.)
28 TOMMY DUNN:   And my
29 understanding, they keep wanting to come.
30 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir. 
31 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s great.  Thank
32 you.  Thank y’all.
33 We’re going to move on to item number 9,
34 Resolutions.  There are none.
35 Moving on to item number 10(a).  This will be a bid
36 approval.  Ask Mr. Carroll to come up if he would.
37 ROBERT CARROLL:   Mr. Chairman, we
38 placed requests for proposals out to provide internet
39 service in certain areas of Anderson County.  And we had
40 one response that came from Upcountry Fiber and West
41 Carolina Rural Telephone as a joint venture.  And Mr.
42 Mark Williamson is here to explain and answer any
43 questions you may have.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Williamson.
45 MARK WILLIAMSON:  Yes, sir.  
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate you being
47 here.
48 MARK WILLIAMSON:  Thank you.  I think
49 we’ve been through this a couple of times with Mr.
50 Graham.  But a positive vote on this allows us to pursue



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
9

1 a contract with Upcountry Fiber to deploy the plan that
2 we initiated them to do, along with design -- I’m sorry,
3 along with Palmetto Engineering to do a broadband study
4 throughout the county.  So that broadband study revealed
5 some need of somewhere around a hundred and thirty-five
6 million dollars.  An approval here gives us the ability
7 to engage this contract with Upcountry Fiber and WCTEL
8 at a deeper level just so we can start to deploy and
9 apply for the state and federal funding that’s going to
10 come down for broadband expansion.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone have any
12 questions or comments?
13 RAY GRAHAM:  I’ve got ---
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Go ahead, Mr.
15 Graham.
16 RAY GRAHAM:  Just a couple of
17 comments off of this.  A few weeks back I went to a
18 conference with the Association of Counties.  And you
19 know, some of the big topics was some investment that
20 the federal government and state is investing in fiber 
21 -- actually in internet services, providing services
22 throughout all the counties because like our county
23 there’s several areas throughout the state that just
24 absolutely either has poor coverage or no coverage.  
25 So thankfully our team has been I guess out front in
26 getting ahead of the game on this.  So I definitely
27 think our county is ahead of the game as far as getting
28 some groundwork laid out to move forward with this.  And
29 definitely appreciate their efforts in moving forward on
30 that.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?  Do we
32 have a motion?
33 RAY GRAHAM:  Motion.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Graham;
35 second Ms. Wilson.  Any more discussion?  I just want to
36 say I appreciate what all you and your team has done,
37 Mark.  Been outstanding to get this.  I know a lot of
38 people look forward to getting this.  Some people take
39 it for granted that some of us has got it.  But I know
40 very well there are people that ain’t.  And this will be
41 a great asset, especially in today’s time.  Appreciate
42 what all you and staff looking at this and researching
43 this and getting this.  It’s the best thing that needs
44 to happen.  If nothing else, all in favor of the motion
45 show of hands.  Opposed like sign.  Show the motion
46 carries unanimously.  Thank y’all again.
47 MARK WILLIAMSON:  Thank you, members
48 of Council.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Move on to item 11. 
50 Mr. Graham.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
10

1 RAY GRAHAM:  Steve, if you could,
2 come up just in case Council has any questions on this
3 next one.  
4 Basically I think January the 4th, somewhere around
5 in that time the agreement that we had basically allowed
6 Priority to operate with EMT and basically a driver, one
7 that’s not certified that’s basically going through the
8 class waiting to be tested, is expiring early January. 
9 They’ve requested that we allow a six-month extension. 
10 The state has already approved this, as well.  
11 And honestly, if we look at where we are and where
12 we’ve been with our EMS system, I think we’re continuing
13 moving forward.  We’re investing in the dispatch system. 
14 Hopefully in a couple of months that should be up and
15 running to full capability on that.  So they had
16 requested that we extend this for six months, and I ask
17 the Council approve that.  And I bring this in the form
18 of a motion that we extend that for six months.
19 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
21 Graham and second Councilman Sanders.  Now discussion. 
22 Anybody got any discussion?  Steve, you got any comments
23 or anything you’d like to say?
24 STEVE KELLY:  No, sir.  I think
25 approving it is the best thing we can do right now. 
26 (Inaudible.)
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you very, very
28 much.
29 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Steve.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   I just want to
31 recognize, too, before -- we’ve got our coroner and one
32 of our EMS providers here, Mr. Shore.  Mr. Shore,
33 appreciate you being here.  Greg, have you got anything
34 you want to say or add or anything?
35 GREG SHORE:  Thank you, Mr.
36 Chairman, Council.  I appreciate your consideration.  We
37 have already trained over thirty drivers to the EMT
38 level.  That’s with the help of Tri-County Tech and a
39 grant with Steve Kelly’s department in helping us with
40 the EMT students.  We saw this problem about two years
41 ago and that’s when we implemented the training program,
42 the academy.  And had we not received this extended
43 contract, we would have probably met the requirement of
44 our local needs.  But when we took over the contract,
45 that was thirty more positions that we had to take on. 
46 So giving us six more months will allow us to get, you
47 know, everybody trained.  And I just appreciate your
48 consideration.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate it.  Any
50 more questions or comments?  All in favor of the motion



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
11

1 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
2 carries unanimously.  
3 Thank you, Mr. Shore.  Appreciate you.
4 GREG SHORE:  Thank you.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you very, very
6 much.
7 We’re going to move on now to item number 12,
8 discussion and action on amendment to lease agreement
9 for a portion of 1428 Building.  This is the old TTI. 
10 Mr. Harmon.
11 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman and
12 members of Council, as you are aware, TTI has been
13 leasing a portion of the 1428 Building.  They lease
14 warehouse space and office space.  We need to do another
15 amendment to the original lease agreement.  They will be
16 giving up a portion of the office space that they lease
17 at the end of July of this next year, which will
18 facilitate the county using other portions of the
19 building.  We’re still working out the exact details on
20 the square footage.  I put a copy of the draft lease at
21 your places today.  
22 What we would request is that you authorize the
23 County Administrator to conclude these negotiations and
24 execute the third amendment to the commercial lease
25 agreement, in substantially the form that you have
26 before you.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
28 Harmon.  Do we have a motion to move this forward?
29 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
30 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
32 second Ms. Wilson.  Now discussion.  Anyone have any
33 questions or comments for Mr. Harmon?  Seeing and
34 hearing none, all in favor of the motion show of hands. 
35 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
36 unanimously.  
37 We’re going to move on now to item number 13,
38 appointments.  We’ll start off with District 7.  Ms.
39 Wilson.
40 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, Mr.
41 Chairman.  I have two appointees who want to switch
42 positions.  Elevating Mr. Dan Harvell from the Zoning
43 Appeals Board to the Planning Commission; Ms. Debbie
44 Chapman wishes to step back to the Board of Zoning
45 Appeals.  And I put that in the form of a motion.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion by
47 Ms. Wilson.  And what this is in my mind, it’s really
48 just a swap.  One is about as important as the other. 
49 Both of them will make decisions that Council can’t vote
50 on.  They decide stuff that don’t come before Council. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
12

1 Don’t get an opportunity to.  So it’s very important
2 that these people we put in positions are very important
3 and they represent us.  Do we have a second?
4 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Graham. 
6 Now any more discussion?  All in favor of Ms. Wilson’s
7 motion show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the
8 motion carries unanimously.  
9 Moving on to District 4.  Mr. Sanders.
10 BRETT SANDERS:   Yes, sir.  I have a
11 vacant position on the Board of Zoning Appeals.  And I
12 would like to nominate Anthony Cirelli to fill that
13 position for District 4.  Put that in the form of a
14 motion.
15 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion Mr.
16 Sanders.  Do we have a second?
17 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
19 Any discussion?  I just want to say I appreciate Mr.
20 Sanders taking care of this.  I know that board has
21 asked several times.  They’ve had some trouble getting
22 quorums together.  So this will really help that out. 
23 And really do appreciate that.  I think he’s eager and
24 wanting to serve.  He’s got a lot of experience in this
25 kind of stuff.  So look forward to seeing him on that. 
26 Anyone else?  All in favor of Mr. Sanders’ motion show
27 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
28 carries unanimously.  
29 At this time we’re moving on to item number 14(a). 
30 Can we have a motion to go into executive session to
31 take legal advice covered by attorney/client privilege. 
32 This is regarding the opioid litigation matter.
33 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
34 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson;
36 second by Mr. Graham.  All in favor of the motion show
37 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
38 carries unanimously.  
39 We’ll be right back.
40 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
41 TOMMY DUNN:   ... come out of
42 executive session; no action taken.  Do I have a second?
43 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Graham. 
45 All in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed
46 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  
47 Do we have a motion?
48 BRETT SANDERS:   Mr. Chairman, I’d
49 like to make a motion to authorize the Chairman of
50 County Council and the County Administrator to execute



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
13

1 settlement documents on behalf of the county with
2 certain Defendants in the opioid litigation upon
3 completion of the settlement negotiations by the
4 county’s attorney in this matter.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion Mr.
6 Sanders.  Do we have a second?
7 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Jimmy
9 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion show
10 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
11 carries unanimously.  
12 Moving on to requests by council members, item
13 number 15(a).  We’ll start off with Mr. Glenn Davis.
14 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
15 Chairman.  I’d like to appropriate fifteen hundred
16 dollars to Men at Work.  They are mentoring about
17 fifteen to twenty young men in an under-served
18 community.  I’d like to put that in the form of a
19 motion.
20 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
22 Davis; and second by Mr. Sanders.  Any discussion?  All
23 in favor of the motion show of hands.  All opposed like
24 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  
25 Does any other council member have a request that I
26 don’t see in front of me.  
27 Seeing and hearing none, we’re going to move on to
28 the Administrator’s report.  Does anybody have any
29 questions or comments on the Administrator’s report?  
30 Seeing and hearing none, citizens’ comments.  Mr.
31 Harmon, we got any?
32 LEON HARMON:  We do not, Mr.
33 Chairman.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  We’re going
35 to have closing comments here from council members. 
36 We’ll start off with Mr. Jimmy Davis.
37 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
38 Chair.  I just want to wish everyone here and my fellow
39 Council representatives a Very Merry Christmas and just
40 to remind everyone we need to keep the folks over in
41 Kentucky and Tennessee in our thoughts and prayers as
42 they’re still feeling the devastating effects during
43 this season.  I hope we as a county, if they need
44 anything, if they reach out to us we’ll respond
45 accordingly.  I know we will.  And I look forward to
46 serving with you folks in 2022.  Thank you, Mr.
47 Chairman.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you. 
49 Mr. Sanders.
50 BRETT SANDERS:   Yes, sir.  I would



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
14

1 just like to take a moment to wish my fellow Council
2 members a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.  And
3 pray that everyone will be safe.  I’m also looking
4 forward to next year and continuing to make progress in
5 this great county.  Thank you, sir.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
7 Mr. Glenn Davis.
8 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
9 Chairman.  First of all, I’d just like to reach out to
10 my fellow Council members and thank you guys for the
11 assistance and the help that you’ve provided me as being
12 the new guy on the block.  You’ve really been helpful. 
13 And again, I thank you.  Look forward to serving with
14 you 2022 as we continue to make Anderson County the best
15 in South Carolina.  
16 And again, I’d like to wish everyone a Merry
17 Christmas, and a safe and Happy New Year.  Everyone over
18 the county.  And thank you for your prayers as we move
19 forward.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
21 Davis.  Moving on to Mr. Graham.
22 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
23 Chairman.  Just looking back over the year, we’re had
24 some tough decisions as Council, as a county; tough
25 things we’ve had to deal with.  Naturally, the pandemic,
26 as well.  But you know, as Mr. Nelson mentioned earlier,
27 we have got so much to be thankful for in Anderson
28 County and also in South Carolina.  We just -- we
29 continue to grow, continue to move forward.  And it’s a
30 privilege and honor to work with each and every one of
31 you.  Mr. Davis, it’s definitely been an honor and
32 privilege to get to know you and your wife and working
33 with you guys.  Definitely look forward to working with
34 each and every one of y’all on the incoming year.  Wish
35 you and your families a Merry Christmas and Happy New
36 Year.  
37 And once again, thanks to every one of our employees
38 in Anderson County.  Y’all are Anderson County.  Y’all
39 are what makes us so great.  And we definitely
40 appreciate everything you guys do on a daily basis. 
41 Thank you.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
43 Mr. Wright.
44 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
45 Chairman.  I just want to echo everybody else’s comments
46 here.  I want to wish my fellow Council members a Merry
47 Christmas and Happy New Year.  It’s hard to believe it’s
48 been right at a year, I guess, since I came on with this
49 group.  And looking back over the last year, it’s felt
50 like drinking from a fire hose at times.  But truly am



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
15

1 blessed and honored, frankly, just to be a part of this
2 Council and this incredible county that we’re also
3 blessed to call home.  So thank you.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
5 Ms. Wilson.
6 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, Mr.
7 Chairman, and all of our Council members.  We are so
8 blessed in Anderson County.  The spirit of team work has
9 paid off such dividends in our county.  Just want to
10 thank everyone for a very positive year.  When it was a
11 tough, tough situation everywhere else in the world, our
12 county still managed to move forward.  And also to our
13 precious citizens that we all serve.  
14 So to all a Merry Christmas and a wish for a Happy,
15 Healthy New Year for all.  Thank you.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  I’d also
17 like to wish my fellow Council members and their
18 families a Merry Christmas and a Happy New Year.  And
19 thank y’all very, very much for the work y’all have put
20 in this year.  And I think making a great year for
21 Anderson County.  I want to thank -- I’ve personally
22 been blessed getting to know Mr. Glenn Davis and Mr.
23 John Wright this past year on Council.  Want to thank
24 y’all very, very much for coming on board and being
25 willing to serve and the job that y’all have done with
26 all my Council members.  I want to thank the Anderson
27 County employees.  As I’ve said many, many times, y’all
28 are the backbone.  Y’all are the first ones, most the
29 time that gets to greet our citizens.  Y’all are the
30 face of Anderson County.  And we really do appreciate
31 the job y’all have done and continue to do.  During 
32 hard times, good times and bad times, y’all show up and
33 get the job done, whatever it takes, and we appreciate
34 it.
35 I want to take this opportunity to say thank you to
36 another retiree.  I think Mr. Cunningham, a deputy that
37 has long served Anderson County.  Stand up, Mr.
38 Cunningham.  Let’s give him a big hand.  He served
39 Anderson County ...
40 APPLAUSE 
41 TOMMY DUNN:   He has served
42 Anderson County well.  He has provided security in many
43 places, mainly this place here for our Council meeting
44 nights and other meetings.  Going to miss him.  But I
45 think talking to him the other day at the Civic Center
46 luncheon, I believe he said this was his fourth
47 retirement, maybe.  Did I get that right?  Fourth or
48 third retirement.  We’re definitely going to miss seeing
49 his face back here and the job he’s done.  But he
50 definitely has earned his retirement.  Hope he enjoys



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting  -  December 21, 2021
16

1 it, him and his family, and has a blessed time in
2 retirement and a great future.  Would anyone else like
3 to say anything about Mr. Cunningham.  Mr. Graham.
4 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you.  I had
5 the pleasure of working for him when I was at the
6 Sheriff’s Department.  Definitely had some good times. 
7 Appreciate your leadership.  Appreciate your commitment
8 to Anderson County and your service.  Definitely a
9 pleasure.  And wish you the best on your retirement.
10 TOMMY DUNN:   And again, want to
11 thank everyone.  Hope everyone, all our employees and
12 our families, have a Merry Christmas and a blessed New
13 Year and be safe.  And let’s go outside.  And before we
14 do, I want to ask Mr. Burriss Nelson if he’ll lead us a
15 blessing for our food.  Everybody go outside and eat and
16 have a good time.  Just for the record because we’ve
17 done things a little bit different this year just
18 because of some people -- anybody saying -- but from
19 Council members and the Administrator, the meal is on
20 us.  Mr. Nelson, go ahead.
21 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, sir.
22 BLESSING BY BURRISS NELSON 
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Amen.
24  
25 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT APPROXIMATELY 6:45 PM) 





HSB 7025105 v.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-074 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF EQUINOX MILL LLC; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council on 
November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County Council, 
Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to Equinox 
Mill LLC, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in 
Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Anderson County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County Council of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed 
amended to so include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______________, 2022.  
 
       

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
ATTEST: 
      
 __________________________________   __________________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts       
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
 
 
 
 



HSB 7025105 v.2  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
        
 
 
 
    __________ 
Leon C. Harmon, Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
First Reading: December 21, 2021 
Second Reading: January 4, 2022 
Third Reading: February 1, 2022 
Public Hearing: February 1, 2022  



 A-1 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
Anderson County TMS Numbers: 

1) 1231102014 

2) 1231103002 

3) 1231102028 

4) 1231209001 

5) 1231102015 

6) 1231205003 
 



HSB 7025105 v.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of December 21, 2021, January 4, 2022 and 
February 1, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-075 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council on 
November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County Council, 
Anderson County and Greenville County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to Luxor 
Scientific LLC, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in 
Greenville County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Anderson County of this Ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include 
such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______________, 2022.  
 
ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 

 
 
 
 
 

Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn 
Anderson County Administrator Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

 

 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

First Reading:  December 21, 2021  

Second Reading:        January 4, 2022 

Third Reading: February 1, 2022  

Public Hearing: February 1, 2022 



A-1 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 

TMS No. 0547010101300 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of  December 21, 2021, January 4, 2022 and 
February 1, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



HSB 7027054 v.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-076 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF OLD DOMINION FREIGHT LINE, 
INC.; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council on 
November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County Council, 
Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County 
Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to Old 
Dominion Freight Line, Inc., it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain 
parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Anderson County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County Council of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed 
amended to so include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this __ day of ______________, 2022.  
 
       

ATTEST: FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
 
 
 

Rusty Burns Tommy Dunn 
Anderson County Administrator Chairman 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 

 



HSB 7027054 v.2  

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

First Reading:  December 21, 2021  

Second Reading:         January 4, 2022 

Third Reading: February 1, 2022  

Public Hearing: February 1, 2022 



A-1 
HSB 7027054 v.2  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



HSB 7027054 v.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of  December 21, 2021, January 4, 2022 and 
February 1, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 















































































ORDINANCE NO. 2022-001 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND A COMPANY KNOWN TO THE COUNTY 
AT THIS TIME AS PROJECT FAITH WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, WHEREBY 
SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF 
TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE 
CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated _____________, 2022 (the “Inducement 
Agreement”) with ________________, a South Carolina corporation (the “Company”) (which was known 
to the County at the time as “Project Faith”), with respect to the acquisition, construction, and installation 
of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings and other real and/or tangible 
personal property to constitute an expansion of the Company’s existing metal fabrication manufacturing 
facility and machine shop in the County (collectively, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $3,825,000 in the County and the expected creation of 10 new, full-time jobs at the Project, 
all within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the hereinafter defined Fee Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park (the “MCIP”) such 
that the Project will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things, (a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the 
“Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by 
the Company with respect to the Project, (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by the 
Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-1-
175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and  



2 

 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, 
upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and 
all changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 4. All fee-in lieu of ad valorem taxes pursuant to the Fee Agreement received by the 
County for MCIP premises located in the County attributable to MCIP property added on and after 
November 16, 2020 shall be distributed, net of special source revenue credits provided by the County 
pursuant to Section 4-1-175 (“Net Park Fees”) as follows: First, 15% of Net Park Fees shall be deposited to 
Bond Fund created by Ordinance 2018-042 and used as required or permitted thereby, Second, 35% of Net 
Park Fees, and any surplus money under Ordinance 2018-042, shall be deposited to the Capital Renewal and 



3 

Replacement Fund of the County, and Third, remaining Net Park Fees shall be disbursed to each of the 
taxing entitles in the County which levy an old ad valorem property tax in any of the areas comprising the 
County’s portion of the MCIP in the same percentage as is equal to that taxing entity’s percentage of the 
millage rate (and proportion of operating and debt service millage) being levied in the current tax year for 
property tax purposes. 

Section 5. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

 
 ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this ___ day of ______, 2022.  
 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
        
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
By:        
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
By:       
            Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:       
 Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
 

 



4 

 
First Reading: January 4, 2022  
Second Reading: January 18, 2022  
Third Reading: February 1, 2022 
Public Hearing: February 1, 2022  
 
 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of January 4, 2022, January 18, 2022, 
and February 1, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, 
and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________________ 
      Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
   Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: _________, 2022 
 
 





























ORDINANCE NO. 2022-003 
  
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
(UNITED COMMUNITY BANK – PROJECT SPRUCE - ADDITIONAL 
PROPERTY); AND OTHER MATTER RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the “2010 
Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the 2010 Agreement, the boundaries of the park created 
therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County 
and Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County to United 
Community Bank for Project Spruce, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include 
certain parcels in Greenville County constituting a portion of the Project Spruce project site not previously 
included in the Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that the 2010 Agreement is 
hereby and shall be amended and revised to include the property located in Greenville County as further 
described on Exhibit A attached to this Ordinance (the “Additional Property), and, pursuant to Section 3(B) 
of the 2010 Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the 2010 
Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such Additional Property in the 2010 Agreement, 
without further action by either County. 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of ________, 2022.  
 
 
 ATTEST:         FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 
Rusty Burns       Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon  
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: January 18, 2022 

2nd Reading: __________________ 

3rd Reading: ___________________ 

Public Hearing: ________________ 
 

 
 
 



 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Addition to Exhibit A to 

Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 

between Anderson County and Greenville County 
 
 
 
Address: 509 Falls Street, Greenville, South Carolina  
 
TMS #’s: 0069000200300, 0061000500500, and 0061000500501. 
  
 
Legal Description: see attached survey 
 
 



 
 



 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of January 18, 2022, _________, 20__ and 
_________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: _________, 2022 
 

4835-7569-7641 v.4 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-004 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 38-311(C) OF THE ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, CODE OF ORDINANCES TO ADD AN ADDITIONAL 
SUBSECTION TO ESTABLISH A TIME FRAME FOR CONSIDERATION OF 
PREVIOUSLY DISAPPROVED PROJECTS BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Anderson County, South Carolina, Code of Ordinances, Chapter 38 does 
not presently address a time frame whereby projects disapproved by the Planning Commission 
may be amended and brought back before the Planning Commission; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Anderson County Council desires to provide for the efficient operation 
of the Planning Commission; 
 
 WHEREAS, various proposed projects have been brought before the Planning 
Commission multiple times with minimal revisions to a previous proposal; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  the County Council desires to amend Section 38-311 (c) of the Code of 
Ordinances to address the above stated issues. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. The Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina, is hereby amended by 
adding a section, to be numbered 38-311 (c)(2), which section reads as follows: 
 
    38-311 (c) 

(2)  If the subdivider submits a corrected preliminary plat as provided in 
subsection (1) above and its is rejected by the planning commission, 
no further preliminary plats may be submitted within the next six (6) 
months.  

 
 2. The existing section 38-311(c)(2) shall be renumbered to 38-311 (c)(3) and existing 
section 38-311(c)(3) shall be renumbered to 38-311(c)(4). 
 
 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 5. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 



 
ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of February, 2022. 
 
 

 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
 

Rusty Burns      Tommy Dunn, District #5, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
 

Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney 

1st Reading: _________________ 

2nd Reading:__________________ 

3rd Reading:___________________ 

Public Hearing:________________ 
 
 

 
 



HSB 7046718 v.2  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-005 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF LOLLIS METALS, INC.; AND OTHER 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council 
on November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County 
Council, Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a 
Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park 
created therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of 
Anderson County and Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to 
Lollis Metals, Inc., it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain 
parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that: 
 
 1. Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include 
the property located in Anderson County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, 
pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County Council of a 
corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and 
Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

 
2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

 
 
 



HSB 7046718 v.2  

 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

 

1st Reading: _________________ 

2nd Reading: _________________ 

3rd Reading: __________________ 

Public Hearing: _______________ 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 



 A-1 
HSB 7046718 v.2  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
Anderson County TMS Numbers: 

1) TMS No. 1520001005 

2) TMS No. 1520001003 

3) TMS No. 1520001014 

 



HSB 7046718 v.2  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of ___________, 2022, ________, 2022 and 
_________, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: ________, 2022 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-006 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 38-172 AND 38-174 OF THE ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, CODE OF ORDINANCES SO AS TO REQUIRE 
PLANNING COMMISSION APPROVAL FOR CERTAIN DWELLING UNITS; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, dwelling units presently defined in Section 38-37 of the Anderson County, 
South Carolina, Code of Ordinances (hereinafter “Anderson County Code” or “Code”) as attached, 
multifamily, or townhouse are presented to the Planning Commission for approval or rejection if 
they qualify as a large scale project: 
 
 WHEREAS, projects in the aforementioned classifications may have significant impacts 
upon the general health and welfare of a community; 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council desires that certain projects containing multiple dwelling 
units should be evaluated by the Planning Commission; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council desires that the approval process for certain projects 
containing multiple dwellings units should mirror the approval process for subdivisions as 
contained in Article III of Chapter 38 of the Code. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. Section 38-172 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina is 
hereby amended to add item (11) to read as follows: 
 
 (11) Attached, multifamily, or townhome developments consisting of 14 or 

more dwelling units or more dwelling units. 
 
 2. Section 38-174 of the Code of Ordinances, Anderson County, South Carolina is 
hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

(b) The Commission shall review and evaluate each application with respect 
only to compliance with all applicable development standards contained 
herein and elsewhere in this article, except that any application for a project 
contained within section 38-172 (11) shall be evaluated by the commission 
in accordance with section 38-311. 

 
3. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 

 4. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 



 
 5. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 6. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 
 
 ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this _________ day of ________, 2022. 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

 

1st Reading: _________________ 

2nd Reading: _________________ 

3rd Reading: __________________ 

Public Hearing: _______________ 
 
 
 
 
















































































	Agenda February 1, 2022
	2a R2202-002 Wren Cheerleaders
	CCM minutes 12/21/2021
	5 Public Safety Committee 
	6a 2021-074
	6b 2021-075
	6c 2021-076
	6d 2022-001 Project Faith
	6e 2022-002 Redistricting
	7a 2022-003 Project Spruce
	7b 2022-004
	8a 2022-005
	8b 2022-006
	9a R2022-005 ReWa
	10a Bid #22-019
	10b Bid #22-032
	10c Bid #22-033
	10d Bid #22-034
	10e Bid #22-035
	10f Bid #22-036
	12a Palmetto Knights Appropriations Request



